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GIC - Bhutan Reinsurance Co. Ltd.

Reinsurance with Professionalism, Trust & Reliability

Director's Report: 2024
Dear Shareholders,

GIC-Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited (GICB) is pleased to present its Twelfth Annual Report for the
year 2024. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to share with you the Annual Report of GIC-
Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited (GICB) for the year ended 31st December 2024. This report highlights
the significant achievements of GICB during the year and includes the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 31st December 2024, prepared in compliance with Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS).

GICB marked 11 years of successful operations in 2024, achieving a registered growth in total business from
Nu. 1,999.38 million in 2023 to Nu. 2,307.88 million in 2024, reflecting a growth of 15.43%.

Net Profit:

In 2024, GICB generated a total income of Nu. 2,228.23 million, while its total expenditure amounted to Nu.
1,776.55 million. The profit before tax for the year was Nu. 451.68 million.

Brief Snapshot

GICB is a Joint Venture Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) company, promoted by General Insurance
Corporation of India (GIC Re) and two Bhutanese promoters. The company's paid-up capital stands at Nu
1,100.00 million. The shareholding structure of the company is as follows:

Local Promotors 25%
GIC of India 26% b
Public 45%
Total Share holdings 100%

Board of Directors:

As of 31st December 2024, the Board of Directors of GICB consisted of seven members, including the
Chairman, the CEQ, one Promoter Director, two GIC-Re India nominee directors, and two Independent
Directors. The Board held four meetings during the year, in full compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016, and the RMA's Corporate Governance Rules & Regulations, 2024. The
company has adhered to the RMA’s prudential regulations and the Bhutanese accounting standards in
finalizing the audited financial statements for the year 2024. Additionally, the statutory records and
documents have been properly maintained by the Reinsurer, in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016. Below are the key financial results for the years 2023 and 2024.
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Financial Results

(Figures in Million)

Particulars 2023 2024
Gross Premium 1,999.38 2,307.88
Net Premium 1,785.96 2,041.26
Earned Premium 1,550.46 1,924.63
Incurred Claims 948.48 1,194.59
Commission 381.07 485.44
Operating Expenses 67.54 73.79
Other Incomes - 0.15
Underwriting Result 152.97 170.96
Investment Income 248.68 303.44
Total Investments 4,275.48 5,064.20
Profit Before Tax 361.36 451.68
Provision far Tax 80.51 112.66
Profit After Tax 270.85 339.02
Other Comprehensive Income 194 (2.15)
Total Comprehensive Income 272.79 336.87
Dividend 110.00 165.00
Transfer to Reserve 439.97 639.42
Claims Ratio 61.20% 62.07%
Commission Ratio 24.58% 25.22%
Management Exp. Ratio 4.36% 3.38%
Total Expense Ratio 28.93% 29.06%
Combined Ratio 90.13% 91.13%

GICB maintains a conservative underwriting approach, but in response to the evolving dynamics of the
reinsurance market, the company has begun exploring structured solutions. GICB has been actively writing
a significant volume of facultative business alongside treaty business. At present, the company covers all
classes of business, with the exception of specialized classes such as liability, credit, and agriculture. Moving
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forward, GICB intends to uphold its prudent underwriting strategy, focusing on the careful selection of
high-quality risks.

GICB's business strategy is focused on maintaining a strong regional presence while selectively expanding
into global markets. The company aims to establish and nurture healthy relationships with clients and
ensure the timely settlement of claims. Currently, GICB's primary focus is on the SAARC region. However,
with the prospect of obtaining an international rating, the company plans to expand into the ASEAN
markets, followed by Central Asia, the MENA region, and selected parts of Africa in specific classes of
business. At present, the company operates in approximately 20 countries.

GICB, the first and only reinsurance company in Bhutan, celebrated its 11th anniversary on 5th September
2024. Over the past 11 years, the company has experienced remarkable growth, with gross premiums
increasing from Nu. 125.04 million in 2014 to Nu. 2,307.88 million in 2024. This demonstrates a substantial
growth trajectory. The company’s Claims Ratio has improved significantly, reducing from 116.74% in 2014
to 62.07% in 2024, reflecting a careful approach to risk selection. Additionally, the Combined Ratio has
decreased from 177.58% in 2014 to 91.13% in 2024, indicating a strong improvement in underwriting
performance. From 2023 to 2024, GICB’s investment assets grew by 18.45%, with an average return on
investment of approximately 6.26%.

Particulars 2023 2024
Total Assets 5,874.04 6,616.46
Growth Rate 22.83% 12.96%
Net Worth 1,677.34 1,904.22
Solvency 1.48 Times 1.58 Times

Note: - The solvency ratio for GICB in 2024 stands at 1.58 times. The total assets for the year amounted to
Nu. 6,616.46 million, reflecting a growth rate of 12.96% compared to the previous year, 2023. GICB's total
investments in 2024 reached Nu. 5,064.20 million, with an average return on investment of 6.26%. The
company has also created provisions in accordance with the prudential regulations of the Royal Monetary
Authority (RMA).

Provisioning for reserves is essential for maintaining a stable portfolio over the years. Ensuring adequate
Claims and Premium Reserves is a significant challenge and a critical aspect for any reinsurance company.
GICB, however, has consistently followed a conservative and prudent reserving methodology. As of 31st
December 2024, the Outstanding Loss Reserve (OSLR) stands at Nu. 2,489.39 million, with an Incurred But
Not Reported (IBNR) reserve of Nu. 455.17 million and an Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR) of Nu. 723.90
million.




Investment Scenario

GICB is actively diversifying its investment portfolio by exploring a range of investment opportunities,
including fixed deposits, bonds, corporate lending through consortium financing, and other instruments
such as commercial papers, equities, and inter-institutional borrowing. Despite facing challenges related to
the limited availability of investment options, particularly with respect to short-term yields, the company
remains committed to adhering to the Prudential Regulations set by the Royal Monetary Authority of
Bhutan. These regulations mandate the establishment of provisions to effectively manage associated risks.
Investment opportunities are crucial for a reinsurance business as they help diversify revenue sources,
improve financial stability, and enhance profitability. By strategically investing in a variety of assets,
reinsurance companies can generate returns that supplement underwriting income. These investments also
provide a buffer against fluctuations in claims and underwriting results, ensuring the company can maintain
adequate capital reserves. Additionally, effective investment management allows reinsurance firms to
optimize their balance sheets, support long-term growth, and meet regulatory capital requirements.
Ultimately, investment opportunities help reinsurance businesses maintain financial strength and meet
their obligations to policyholders.

Rating

Rating plays a crucial role in facilitating business relationships with insurers and reinsurers globally.
Although the company does not yet have an international rating, it has successfully established business
relationships with insurers and reinsurers from over 20 countries. Currently, the company holds a rating
from Credit Analysis and Research Limited (CARE Ratings Limited) in India. The current rating is "A" for
Issuer Rating (General Creditworthiness), which is the third-highest rating, following "AAA" and "AA".

With consistent performance over the years, the infusion of additional capital, strategic investments
generating higher returns, and the accumulation of reserves, GICB is optimistic about achieving a strong
international rating in the future. Obtaining an international rating will significantly enhance the company's
business prospects, opening up opportunities for substantial growth.

Other Highlights

GICB has a state-of-the-art IT infrastructure and is proud to be the first financial institution in Bhutan to
deploy a Dual Stack Network with both IPv6 and IPv4. We are among the few financial institutions in
Bhutan that own an Autonomous System Number (ASN 137925), along with our own IPv4 (/24) and IPv6
(/48) addresses, allocated by APNIC. To ensure business continuity, GICB has a Disaster Recovery (DR) site
hosted at Bhutan Telecom’s data center in Phuentsholing. We conduct regular DR drills to maintain
seamless failover readiness, ensuring our DR site operates at par with our primary data center (DC) during

the time of emergency.




To ensure efficient IT infrastructure management and monitoring, we leverage internationally recognized
network monitoring, management, and log management tools.

GICB is also I1SO 27001: ISMS (Information Security Management System) certified, holding certification
number IS 742090, reinforcing our commitment to data security and operational excellence.

GICB is proud to be the first company in Bhutan to fully comply with Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
standards. The ERM Department operates under a comprehensive ERM Policy & Procedure, maintaining a
risk register that records all organizational risks. This register is reviewed and updated quarterly during
Management-Level ERM committee meetings, followed by Board-Level ERM committee meetings. Key ERM
mandates include fire evacuation drills, first aid training, and business continuity drills, ensuring
preparedness for unforeseen events.

Additionally, GICB has conducted stress tests and CAT modeling with experts from a renowned firm to
assess the company's resilience. This rigorous evaluation enables GICB to thoroughly assess risks before
underwriting business, thereby minimizing potential risks and enhancing overall risk management
practices.

The company was presented with the Certificate of Excellence for "Best Reinsurer of the Year" in Bhutan by
the Indian Chamber of Commerce (ICC) during the 5th ICC Emerging Asia Insurance Conclave & Awards
2024, held on February 7th, 2025, in Bangkok, Thailand.

GICB's joint venture partner, GIC Re India, continues to provide strong technical and strategic support, with
dedicated GIC Re official assigned on a full-time basis to the Company.

Strategy Ahead

GICB has established a strong track record since its inception, with promising business prospects. Premiums
have been consistently growing, reflecting the company's solid performance. The current paid-up capital
stands at Nu. 1,100 million, and the recent enhancement of this capital has bolstered the company’s
financial strength while expanding its underwriting capacity. The company is also taking proactive steps to
develop a Catastrophic (CAT) model designed especially for the Indian region which is being outsourced and
will aid in managing CAT exposure more effectively as major business resides from India. With improved
underwriting performance, stronger investment returns, a robust ERM structure, and advanced IT
infrastructure, GICB is poised to achieve a favorable international rating in the future. This will enable
further diversification and optimization of its portfolio mix.

Statutory Auditors:

M/S. S Jaykishan, a Chartered Accountants firm based in Kolkata, has conducted the audit of the reinsurer's
financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2024,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
THIMPU, BHUTAN

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY
LIMITED (referred fo as “the Company"}, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as
at December 31, 2024, the Statement of ComprehensiveIncome,Sioiemeniof(?hongesin
Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based en our
audiit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, except for the effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the accompanying financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company,
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended on that date, in accordance
with the Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS/ BFRS).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

| Note 4 to the Financial Statements shows that the Company has loans and advances
amounting to Nu. 1,198,199,112. The Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan,
Secretariat, Ministry of Finance vide Nofification no. AASBB/Cri-03/2023/183, dated 13th
March 2023, has provided for exemption of application of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model under BFRS 9 for Insurance Companies uniil the issuance of BFRS 17, with an effective
date of 1st January 2025. However, the nofification states that Insurance Companies with g
loan component must implement the ECL model of BFRS 9. Despite the Company having
loans and advances amounting to Nu. 1,198,199.112. the ECL model has not been
implemented as of 31st December 2024, as required by BFRS 9. In the absence of such an
evaluafion by the management, we are unable to comment on the impairment, if any, on
the value of such loans and the consequential impact thereon.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company within the meaning of the IESBA Code and have fulfilled our other responsibilities

under those relevant ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
| obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.




Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 4. Loans and Advances of the Financial Statements, which
discloses the loan extended to M/s Ice Beverages Private Limited. The repayment of this loan
has been deferred in accordance with the Standard Cperating Procedures [SOP) of Financial
Institutions (Fls) for Loan Deferment Post-June 2024 and the Directive on Deferment, FEIF, and
Loan Provisioning dated 28th September 2023, issued by the Royal Maonetary Authority (RMA)
of Bhutan. The restructuring plan for this loan was opproved by the RMA on 20th November
2024, with implementation scheduled for 2025.

The loan restructuring has been approved based on the financial stability of the promoters
and has received consent from all financial institutions in the lending consortium, as well as
‘from the RMA. However, there are significant concerns regarding the recoverability of the
loan, which are supported by the following factors:

1. Going Concern Uncertainty: The auditor's report for the year ended 31st December
2023 highlighted material uncertainty regarding the company's ability to continue as
a going concern.

2. Financial Distress: The borrower is facing severe financial distress, including
accumulated losses, non-reglisable current assetfs, negative working capital, and
negative net worth,

3. Doubtful Recoverability of Exposure: A significant exposure to the wholly-owned
subsidiary remains highly doubtful, considering the weak financial position of the
subsidiary.

4. Inadequate Security Coverage: As of 31st December 2023, the security maintained
amounts to Nu. 607.622 million, whereas the total consortium debt as of 30th June 2024
stands at Nu. 1,057.290 milion. This results in insufficient collateral coverage and non-
compliance with the Loan-to-Value (LTV| rafio requirement of 125%, as per RMA
directives,

5. Unviable Projected Financials: The projected financials from 2025 to 2056 indicate
operational unviability, raising further concerns about the company's ability to service
the restructured debt.

Due to these concerns, the recovery of the loan remains uncertain. However, as a prudent
measure, the company has recognized a 31% provision on this loan as of 31st Decemibber 2024.

QOur opinion is not modified in respect of this mafter,

Other Matter

The actuarial valuation of liability in respect of Claims Incurred But Not Reported [IBNR) as of
31st December 2024 is certified by the Company's appointed Acfuaries, and our opinion in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures related 1o such liability is based solely on
such report.

Note 4 to the Financial Statements refers 1o the loans extended to Bhutan Insurance Limited,
amounting to Nu. 700,000,000. It is to be noted that a provision of 1%, as required for Standard
Assets, has not been maintained, as the loan has been classified as an infra-institutional
borrowing, based on prior approval obtained from RMA. However, the RMA has prohibited
any future renewal of such investments in non-bank entities, as the Company is not authorized
to engage in lending activifies.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters thatf, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition
to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have defermined the
matters described below 1o be the key audit matters for the Company fo be communicated

in our report.

Why the matter was determined to be a Key
Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the Audit

a. Revenue Recognition:
Premium income is the main source of
income of the Company and one of the
major areas of concermn for correct
depiction of financial results as per the
Company's overall acccounfing policy
described in the significant policies of the
Company in respect of the recognition of
premium income. The mathematical
methods use assumptlions concerning
premiums, ultimate loss ratios, and run-off
patterns, which are based on an expert
estimate derived from past experience. The
Company recognizes reinsurance premium
income based on the statement of
accounfs or closing sfatements received
from the ceding companies.

At the year end, estimates are made for ine
accounts not received based on the
Estimated Premium Income (EPI)] agreed
upon by both the Company and the Ceding
Companies af the time of inception of the
freaty or paolicy slip.

Premium estimation is the differential of EPI
and the booked premium for the year by the
Company.

The estimation of income can be right only if
the factors involved are incorporated in the
system and extracted correctly from the
system.

For the purpose of auditing the estimated gross
premium, we first evoluated the design of the
contribution and estimation process. In that
connection, we identified the material key
controls and analyzed their design. Based on
that analysis, we evaluated the operatfing
effectiveness by festing the effectiveness of the
key confrols implemented. Understood and
tested the governance process in place to
determine the re-insurance contract liabilities,
including ftesfing the associated financial
reporting control framewaork. Tested the design,
implementation, and operating effectiveness of
key controls over Revenue Recognition.Verified
premium estimation with the guidelines of the
Company and performed test of controls, test of
details, and analytical review procedures on
estimation of income. Verified EFI from the treaty
or policy slip and verified actual premium
bocked from Statement of Accounts aor Closing
Statements received from the Cedants of the
sample cases.

We obiained o detailed understanding and
evaluated the design and implementation of
controls that the Company has established in
relation to recognizing premium income. We
assessed the control segregation of premium
amengst different business segments broadly
fire. engineering, marine and miscelaneous.

Adjustment of Unearned Premium Reserve. In
test of details, we critically reviewed the material
assumptions underlying an estimate and asked
the Company to explain to us the grounds for
such estimates. Based on our audit procedures,
we were able to satisfy ourselves that the
calculation procedures used by them to derive
the estimated gross premium are cppropriate
overall.

KOLKATA
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Why the mafter was determined to be a Key
Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the Audit

b. Claims Provisioning:

Determining the provision for outstanding
claims is subject to uncerainty and
judgment, as the provision is largely based
on estimates and assumptions. It involves a
high degree of subjectivity and complexity.
Uncertainties in estimation arise from the
occurrence, amount, and speed of
settlement of major losses, long-term claims
development, and special loss scenarios
(including third-party liability). We have,
therefore, designated the measurement of
the provision for cutstanding claims as a key
audit matter.

Insurance Claim is the major area of
expense for the insurance company. Total
incurred claims include paid claims,
Qutstanding Loss Reserve [OSLR), and
Claims Incurred but Not Reported [IBNR].

We have tested the effectiveness of the
confrols implemented for ensuring the
completeness and accuracy of the
recognition and measurement of claims.

For assessing the guality of estimates, we
analyzed the actual development of the
previous year's provision for outstanding

claims baosed on the runoff results. We
applied mathematical and statistical
methods 1o generate our own loss

projections for certain segments based on
risk considerations. In addition, we
compared the reserve level at the end of
the reporting pericod with the previous year's
level and verified adjustments made to if,
Assessing the process and related
judgments of the Company in relation to
natural catastrophes and other large losses,
including using our industry knowledge to
assess the reasonableness of market loss
estimates and ofher significant assumptions.

We have verified the operational guidelines
of the Company relating fo claim
processing, performed test of controls, test
of details and analytical review procedures
on the outstanding claims. Verified the claim
paid and provision on a sample basis with
payment proof, Preliminary Loss Advice
(PLA) and Statement of Accounts [SOA)
received from the Cedont Company/
brokers, and the same is further verified from
the surveyor's report.

Our audit approach is to understand the
systems, procedures, and contral over the
claims registered at different operating
offices and evaluate the implementation
design of these essential elements. We
focused on these areas because underlying
these methods are a number of explicit or
implicit  assumptions relating to the
expected seftlement amount and
settlement patfterns of claims, which are
subject to critical judgment.
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For the claim cases which has been incurred
but not reported are captured by the
Actuary appeinted by the Company. The
actuarial valuation of liakility in respect of
Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) as
at 31st December 2024 is as certified by the
Campany's appointed Actuary, and we
had verified the amounts and the related
liability based on such report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the infermation included in the Annual Report, along with Corporate
Overview, Key Highlights, Board of Directors Reporl, Report on Corperate Governance,
Management Discussion & Analysis Report, and Business Responsibility Report but does
not include the Financial Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon,

Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not caover the otherinformation, and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during cur audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in accordance with the Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS/BFRS) and for
implementing such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
gither intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to oblain recsonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our additional responsibilities are provided in 'Annexure A'.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 246 of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 (The Minimum Audit
Examination and Reporting Reguirements) issued by the Royal Audit Autherity and based on
such checks as we considered appropriate and according to information and explanations
given to us, we enclose in the ' Annexure B, o statement on the matters specified therein to
the extent applicable to Company.

As required by Section 245 the Act, we report that:

a) We have obtained, except for matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section,
all the information and explanation, which to the best of our knowledge and beliefs were
necessary for the purpose of our audit,

b) Except for the effects of matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been maintained by
the Company so far as appears from our examination of the books. Additionally, proper
returns, adequate for the purpose of our gudit, have been received,

c) The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Incame, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with in this report agree with the books
of accounts.

d) Based on the information, explanation, and management representation received during
our audit, the company has complied with all the applicable and relevant legal regulatory
requirements, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinicn
paragraph above.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 309005E

CA RITESH AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No. 062410
Place: Kolkata _
Date: The 11th day of March 2025

UDIN: 25062410 BMIPPN3




ANNEXURE A TO AUDITOR'S REPORT

To Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report
of even date)

Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements
[Audit Report of GIC - Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited for the year ended on 31st December

2024)

As part of an oudif in accordance with ISAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintained
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from emor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obitain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit fo design audit procedures that
are gppropriate in the circumstances, buf not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the approprioteness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ablility to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our audit's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among cther matters, the
planned scope and fiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For §. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 309005E

CA RITESH AGARWAL ;-cmm'a
Partner FRN - 305005E
Membership No. 062410

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 11th day of March 202
UDIN: 25062410 BMIFPN344Q



ANNEXURE B TO AUDITOR'S REPORT

To Independent Auditor's Report
{Referred toin ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

INIMUM AUDIT EXAMINATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS :

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of accounts and records produced befeore and examined by us in the normal
course of qudit, we state that:

1. A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full parficulars, including
quantitative details and the situation of Property & Equipment. As stated, the management
during the year has physically verified the Property and Equipment of the Company, and
no material discrepancies between the physical inventory and book records were noticed
on such verification.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full parficulars of Intangible Assefs.
2. The Company does not own Land & Building as at 31-12-2024. Hence, no reporfing is required.

3. The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from Companies, firms, or other
parties. Further, the Company has not taken any loan from any company under the same
management. Therefore, terms of such loans, whether prejudicial to the interests of the
Company, do not arise.

4. The Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured, to other Companies, firms, or other
parties as its investing activity. However, according to the management, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company under the same management. The
terms of the loans granted were not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

5. According to the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing rates and taxes,
duties, royalties, and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, and there were no
arrears during the year.

6. According fo the best of our knowledge, and based on the information and explanations
provided 1o us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of taxes, duties, and other
statutory deductions that were outstanding as of the last date of the financial year concerned.

7. In our opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us during the
course of the audit, the Company needs to establish an adequate system of internal conftrols to
ensure the completeness, accuracy, and reliability of accounfing records, carrying out the
records, carrying out the business in an orderly and efficient manner, to safeguard the assets of
the Company as well as to ensure compliance with the applicable rules/regulations and systems
and procedures.

8. Based on the information and explanations provided, and as per test checks, personal
expenses (other than those payable under contractual obligations and/or as per customary
business practices) were not charged to the Company's account.

KOLKATA
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9. As informed, the Company has a system in place for obtaining the best proposals and bids for
the purchase and sale of goods & services and assets (wherever is applicable).

We have not identified any transactions related to the purchase and sales of goods and services
made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered with the directors, their relatives, or
companies, or firms in which the directors have a direct or indirect interest. Further, the
management has not reported any transactions involving the directors, their relatives, or
companies, or firms in which the directors are directly or indireclly interesfed.

10. The Company has not appointed any commission agent.

11. A reasonable system has been implemented for the continuous follow-up of the realization
of outstanding premiums for policies, including age-wise analysis, where applicable.

12. Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our examinafion of the
books and records on a test-check basis, we are of thHe opinion that the activities caried out
by the Company are lawful. We have not identified any instances where the activities of the
Company are ultra vires the Articles of Association of the Company.

13. As reported and observed, officials of the Company refrained from transmitting any
unauthorized price-sensitive information, which is not publicly available, to their relatives/ friends/
associates or close persons, which would directly or indirectly benefit themselves.

14. The matters specified in the Minimum Audit and Reporting Requirements for manufacturing,
mining, or processing companies are not applicable as the Company is a financial institution and
is not engaged in any manufacturing and production activity or sale of goods.

15. In our opinion, the budgetary confral system within the Company requires further
sirengthening, considering the size of the Company.

16. The details of remuneration/ sitting fees paid to the Chairman and Directors are disclosed in
the Notes to Accounts. [Refer to Note 27 of the financial staterments]

17. The Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Financial Services Act,
2011, and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, and guidelines issued by the relevant
authorities, except for the provisions pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility activities as
required under Section 165 of the Caompanies Act of Bhutan, 2016.

18. In our opinion and based on information and explanations given to us, the management
of liguid rescurces, parficularly cash and bank balances, is adequate, and excessive amounts
are not generally lying idle in non-interest-bearing accounts.

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has a system of approval of the Board for all capital investment decisions.

20. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Directives of the Board
have been complied with,

21. Employees to whom advances have been given by the Company are regular in repaying
the principal amounts as stipulated.

22. Additional loan is not granted to those who have defaulted on payment of previous
advances.

23. Asreported, the Company has entered into a reasonable agreement with parties to which
the company has provided loans and advances. -




24. The requirements relating fo provisioning for the non-performing assets including loans and
advances in terms of Prudential Regulations of RMA have been complied with.

25. The Company has a system of monitoring projects for which loans have been provided to
ensure that loan amounts are used for the specified purposes and project activities are
progressing satisfactarily.

26. The Company, in general, has a system for carrying out proper analysis before permitting
re-phasing/ rescheduling of, based on examination carried out in accordance with the
generadlly accepted auditing procedures and based on the information and explanations
provided by the management to us, re-phasing has generally not been permitted in respect
of non-performing loans except in case of consertium finance wherein the company is in the
process of finalizing standard operating practices.

27. Computerized Accounting Environment

a. The Company has developed a customized software system for the maintenance of
accounts.

b. According to information and explanations provided to us, the backup is stored in the
Server which is located at o place separate from the Head office. The backup and other
safeguard measures appear to be adequate.

c. The operational controls are found adequate to ensure the correctness and validity of input
data and output information,

d. As explained to us, the measures taken by the Company to prevent unauthorized access
through the computer installation and files are being upgraded to be considered adeguate.

GENERAL :

a) The Company adheres to the corporate Governance Guidelines and Regulations as
applicable to them.

b) As observed during the audit, the Company pursues a prudent and sound financial
management practice in managing the affairs of the Company.

c) The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Bhutanese Accounting
Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan [AASBR).

d) The proper books of accounts have been maintained and financial statements agree
with the underlying accounting records.

e] The adequate records as specified under Section 228 of the Companies Act of
Bhutan, 2014 have been maintained,

f)  The mandatory obligations social or otherwise, if any, entrusted are being fulfiled.

gl The amount of tax is computed correctly and reflecied in the financial statements.




OTHER REQUIREMENTS :

1.

Going Concern:

On the basis of the attached Financial Statements as of 31st December 2024 and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the financial position of
the Company is healthy, ond we have no reason to believe that the Company is likely
to become sick in the near future.

Compliances with the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2014

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and
based on o Compliance Checklist completed by the Corporation Officials, the
Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Companies Act of Bhutan,
2014, except for the requirements on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as
required under section 165 of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016.

Adherence to Laws, Rules, and Regulations

The Audit of the Company is governed by 'The Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016, and
the scope of the audit is limited to examination and reviews of the financial statement
as proeduced to us by the management. During the audit, we considered the
compliance of provision of the said Companies Act. The Company does not have a
comprehensive Compliance Reporting and Recording System as regards adherence
to all laws, rules and regulations, systems, procedures, and practices. Under the
circumstances, we are unable fo comment on the compliance of the same by the
Company during the year 2024,

Ratio Analysis

On the basis of the attached Financial Statements as of 315t December 2024 and
according fo the information and explanation given to us, we have camried cut the
appropriate ralio analysis to assess the finoncial and operational periormance of the
entity. [Refer to Note 28 of the financial statements)

For S. Jaykishan

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 307005E

m
CA RITESH AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No. 062410
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 11th day of March 2025
UDIN: 25 062410BM\PPN3 4498




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amount in Nu.)

TOTAL ASSETS

Particilars .V iy e e e | Note| Ason31-12-202

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 130,173,256 167,774,632
Other Bank Balances 2 461,750,571 680,653,881
nsurance Receivables 3 1,406,653,535 1,393,700,205
Loans and Advances 4 1,198,199,112 1,174,382,782
Other Financial Assets 5 221,214,684 185,085,020
nvestments & 3,183,287,229 2,236,013,406
Property and Equipment g | 10,607,812 13,212,732
Intangible Assets 8 | 1,632,986 2,879,328
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12 119,302

Other Assets 9 2,824,112 3,517,563

6,616,462,599

5,857,219,549

Financial Liabilities

Reinsurance Contract Liabilities 10 792,232,933 853,345,146
Current Tax Liabilities 7 102,526,097 60,066,091
Trade and Other Payables 11 2,874,921 1,500,770
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12 - 836,646
Provisions 13 3,814,609,233 3,204,127,715
Total Liabilities 4,712,243,184 4,179,876,369
Equity

Share Capital 22 1,100,000,000 1,100,000,000
Other Equity 23

General Reserve 639,418,789 439,972,207
Retained Earnings 165,000,000 135,424,057
Net Unrealized Gains/ (Losses) (199,374) 1,946,916

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1,904,219,415
6,616,462,599

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S. Jaykishan

Chartered Accountants /,‘. o '1:~ ._
FRN: 309005E

f _—
S mw I -a

I\J\\—/

CA RITESH AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No: 062410
Date : The 11th day of March, 2025
Place : Kolkata

1,677,343,180
5,857,219,549

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GIC Bhutan Reinsyrance co Itd

Place : Thimphu




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amount in Nu.)

e

INCOME |

Revenue from Operations 14 1.924,832,597 1,350,459,308
Other Income 15 | 303,599,316 248,692,401
TOTAL INCOME | 2,228,232,513 | 1,799,152,208
EXPENSES l |

Direct Expenses | 16 1.680,041,995 1,329,960.7886
Employes Benefit Expenses : 17 34,672,508 | 28,242,505
Other Expenses I 18 57,410,683 | 74,863,318
Depreciation | 8 4427120 4,724,576

1,776,552,306

1,437,791,186

Tax Expense :

Current Tax 112,898,200 | 90,354,089
Deferred Tax (240,519)| (353,184}
For Earlier Years = 512,003
Profit for the year - | 33vpa2s26|  Znsasiia
Other Comprehensive Income 20 |
Iterns that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss:
a. Equity Investments through Other Comprehensive
Income (919,832} 1,946,918
b. Remeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans -

r Comprehensive Income for
'—_'.'_',' i ;_-'-'

tl ‘3 eyear e

{1,226,658)

W ;

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

APPROPRIATIONS

Transferred to Retained Earnings | 169,511,263 135,424,057

Transferred to General Reserve 169,511,263 135,424,057
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 339,022,526 270,848,114
Earnings per Share: 21 |

Basic Earning Per Share 3.08 2.48)

Diluted Earning Per Share 3.08 2.48)
Earnings per Share- Continuing Operation 21 |

Basic Earning Per Share 3.08 2.46

Diluted Earning Per Share 3.08 2,46

The accompamying notes form an integral part of these financiol statements

As per our report of even date attached
For 5. laykishan

Chartered Accountants
FRIN: 309005E

CA RITESH AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No: 062410
Date : The 11th day of March, 2025
Place : Kolkata

el
D s

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GIC Bhutan Reinsurance g g

Place : Thimphu




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st December, 2024

[Amount in Nu.)

gt ’ X - General Reserve Retained Earnings Total Shareholders' Funds

z 22 ETS A Rl s ¢ Lo G L T - 1

ng of the reporting year 1,100,000,000 439,972,207 135,424,057 1,677,343,180
Met Profit tor the year 169,511,263 169,511,263 349,022,526
Uther Camprehensive Income (2.146,290) (2,146,2490)
Dividend for the year 2023 (110,000,000) (110,000,000)
Transfer from Retamed Earmings to General Reserve 29,935,320 (29,935,320)
Balances as at 31st December 2024 1,100,000,000 (199,374) 639,418,790 165,000,000 1,904,219,416
Thee aecanmpuanying notes foom an mtegeal part of these fuogial stotements

.
Chairpérsen

GIC Bhutan Reinsurance co

N

iy f?E.'N':L"t‘-T“:.

e

FRN . 309005E




GiC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Amount in Nu.)

e i | rortheyearended2024 | Forthe year ended 2023

A.| CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: |

| Profit Before Tax for the period 451,680,207 | 361,361,022
Adjustment for non-cash and non-operating items to reconcile profit before tax to |

'net cash flows:

Depreciation 4,427,120 | 4,724,576
Income From Bond {21,884,116) 16:245,453)
Income From Dividend 832,247} -
Income From Fixed Deposit (193.671,152)| 159,235,470)
Income from Other Investments (84,466,161)| 73,208,948)
Pravision for Employee Benefits 1,063,209 1,223,427
Operating profit before working capital changes 156,316,360 118,619,155
Movement in Working Capital:
Change in Reinsurance Receivables (12,953,331} (411,294,276)
Change in Loan & Advances (23,216,329) (449,398 306}
Change in Other Financial Assets [36,129,665) (27.454,455)
Change in Other Current Assets 693,452 | 187.089)
Change in Reinsurance Contract Liabilities (61,112,213 I| 57,141,368
Change in Trade and Other Payables 1,374,151 I 719,618
Change in Short Term Prowision 547,782,665 | 768,262,740
Cash Generated from Operating Activities 572,155,690 | 56,508,155
Corporate Tax Paid 70,438,193 | 71,811,180
MNet Cash Flow From Operating Activities (A]: 501,717,497 [15,303,025)
B. | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
[Purchase)/ Sale of Property & Equipment [575,858) (7,101,644)
Net Change in Fixed Deposit 218,500,000 955,000,160
Net Change in Investment (948,500.000) (1,031,917,519)
| Income From Bond 21,884,116 16,245,453
| Income From Dividend 332,247 -
Income From Fixed Depaosit 193,671,152 159,235,470
Income from Other Investments 84,466,161 73,208,948
Net Cash Flow From/ (Used) in Investing Activities (B): (429,722,182) 164,670,868

C. | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Dividend paid during the year 1110,000,000) | 76,450,000)
Unclaimed Dividend for the year (81,788) [567,537)
| Unclaimed Dividend paid for prior years 485,098
| Net Cash Flow From/ (Used) in Financing Activities [C): (109,596,590) (77,017,537)
Net Increase/ (Decrease} in Cash & Cash Equivalents [A + B + ] (37.801.,378) 72,350,307
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 167,774,632 95,424,325
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Eguivalents 130,173,256 167,774,632

The accomponying nates farm an integral parr of these financial starements

f Directors

As per our report of even date attached e For and on behalf of the Board g
For S. Jaykishan 0 & ,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 309005E

CA RITESH AGARWAL Chairman

Partner

Membership No: 062410 Ch .

Date : The 11th day of March, 2025 Gic Bhu!a:gp?rlon

Place : Kolkata Efﬂsuram_;e C(ﬂf$ : Thimph

g
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

1. GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The principal activities of GIC - Bhutan Reinsurance Co. Ltd ({the "Company" or "GIC"} caver all significant
operations that have taken place within Bhutan.

The Company is a limited liability company incarporated and domiciled in Bhutan. The address of its principal
place of business is Thimphu, Bhutan.

The Company was incorporated on 16th May, 2013 vide registration no. U20130516THI0406, where the
foreign investors hold 26% shareholding of the Company. The Company has taken the following Trade License:

License No. Nature of Activity
1029965 General Reinsurance Business

These Financial Statements relate to the year ended 31st December, 2024.

The Company is listed in the Royal Securities Exchange of Bhutan Limited.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account are drawn up in accordance with the Regulation for
Establishment of Reinsurance Business in Bhutan, the Financial Services Act of Bhutan, and the Bhutanese
Accounting Standard (BAS) as notified by the Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan ("AASBB").
The said statements are prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis except as otherwise stated
and conform to the statutory provisions and practices prevailing in the General Insurance Industry in Bhutan.

2.2 Functional Currency

The functional currency of preparation is Bhutanese Ngultrum (Nu.)

2.3 Use of judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the generally acceptad accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities as of the Balance Sheet date, revenue and expenses for the year ended, and disclosure of contingent
liabilities as of the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in accompanying Financial
Statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstanceas as of the date
of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing
the accompanying financial statements. Any revision to accounting astimates is recognized prospectively in
current and future periods. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant affect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements are included in the following
notes:

al Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
b) Unearned Pramium
c) Employee Benefit



2.4 Going Concern
The management of the Company has assessed its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that
it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, managementis not aware

of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

3. APPLICATION OF BHUTANESE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:
The Financial Statements have been preparad in line with Bhutanese Accounting Standards.

The summarized impact of the introduction of BAS is:

a) The Company has presented Statements of Comprehensive Income and Changes in Equity as required
by BAS 1. These statements show information that was previously disclosed in the schedules to the
financial statements.

b} The Company has complied with relevant Bhutanese Accounting Standards and RMA guidelines in
preparation of its financial statements.

4. SEGMENT REPORTING:
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing the performance of the operating segments, has been identified by the Board of Directors.

5. EQUITY MOVEMENTS:
5.1 Ordinary Share Capital

The Company has issued Ordinary Shares that are classified as equity instruments. Incremental external costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are recognized in equity, net of tax.

5.2 Dividends on Ordinary Share Capital

Dividends on Ordinary Shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the sharehoiders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting
date.



6. REINSURAMNCE BUSINESS:
6.1 Reinsurance Revenues

Reinsurance Revenues Premium is accounted based on accounts rendered by ceding companies upon receipt
of accaunts. At the year end, estimates are made for accounts not yet received, based on available information
and currant trends. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for net of discounts, returns, and taxes. The Company recognizes revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and when it is probable that future economic benefits

will flow to the Company.
Various provisions have been made based on the industry policy of Reinsurance business.

Premium Receivable represents the amount receivable as per term of premium payments warranty contracts
with brokers. Any subsequent revision to or cancellation of premiums are recognized in the year in which they
occur.

6.2 Reserve for Unearned Premium (UPR)

The UPR pravisions are made as under:

a) 30% of the Accounted Premium for the period for all classes of business have been recognized as
Unearned Premium for annual closing.

6.3 Brokerage & Commission

Brokerage & Commission has been taken as expenditure as per the terms of the policy and calculated based
on the premium received for different types of Insurance.

6.4 Reinsurance Ceded

Re-Insurance Cassions are accounted far an actual or estimated wherever actual are not available.

6.5 Outstanding Claims

a. OSLR (Outstanding Loss Reserve)

Estimated liability for outstanding claims in respect of Reinsurance business carried out in Bhutan is
based on advice received as of different dates up to the date of finalization of claim figures in the
books and wherever such advices are not received, on estimates based on available information,
current trends and past underwriting experience of the management.

b. IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported)

Praovision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made as certified by the appointed actuary
based on accepted actuarial methods.

6.6 Receivables and Advances

Receivables and Advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not gquoted in an active market. They are included in Current Assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reparting period. These are classified as Non- Current Assets. The Company’s
Receivables and Advancas comprise "Insurance Receivables”, "Other Financial Assets", and "Cash & Cash
Equivalents” in the Statement of Financial Position.



6.7 Reinsurance Contract Liabilities

Trade Payables are initially reccgnized at the fair value of the amounts to be paid. Accounts payable are
classified as Current Liabilitias if payment is due within ane year ar less (or in the normal operating eycle of
the business, if langer). If not, they are presented as Non- Current Liabilities.

6.8 Insurance Receivables

Trade Receivables are initially recognized at the fair value of the amounts to be received. If collection is
expected in one year ar less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
Current Assets. If not, they are presented as Non- Current Assets. Receivables are reviewed regularly for
impairment.

6.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

7. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

a) Revenue transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the daily rate of exchange on the day
accounts are received and transactions are booked. The rates have been taken from XE.COM.

b} Menetary items such as balances in bank accounts held in foreign currencies are converted using the
closing rates of exchange at the Balance Sheet date.

¢} Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translations at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the Statement of Income.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
8.1. Initial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assats and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition,
except for insurance receivables, which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are accounted for at the settlement date.

8.2. Subsequent Measurement

Non-derivative financial instruments

{i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost
A financial asset is subsequently measurad at amortized cost if it is held within a business maodel
whose objective is to hold the assat in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified datas to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments, which
are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income based on its business model. Further, in cases where the Company has
made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified
as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset that is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination, which is subsequently
measured at Tair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

Business Model Assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups
of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company’s business model is assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is based on
observable factors such as:

s How the performance of the business madel and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel.

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that husiness model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.

s How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

s The expected frequency, value, and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company’s assessmeant.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst
case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a
way that is different from the Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The 5PPI test
As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of the

financial assets to identify whether they meet the S5PPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are
repayments of principal or amaortization of the premium/discount).



The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the
Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the
financial asset is denominated and the period for which the interest rate is set.

8.3 Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount at the date of derecognition
and the consideration received (including any new asset abtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.

The entity generally derecognises a financial liability when its contractual cbligations expire or are discharged
or cancelled. The entity also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the madified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount 2xtinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or
loss.

8.4 Write-Offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped
pursuing the recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to the profit and loss account.

8.5 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assats and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income
and expenses will not be offset in the consolidated income statement unless required or permitted by any
accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

A. Property and Equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of
eguipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based
on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognizaed in
the carrying amount of the equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning
liabilities are expected to be incurred on the assets of equipment.




B. Depreciation on cther acquired assets during the year is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives (evaluated by the

management), as follows:

Machinery and Other Equipment 6 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Computers and Office Equipment B years
Vehicles 10 years
Electronic Equipment 4 years

C. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
aach reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognized within "Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)' as the case may be, in
the income statement.

D. intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets representing software are recorded at its acquisition price and are amortized over
their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the assets are available
for use. The management has estimated the useful life for such software as six years. The useful life
of the asset is reviewed by the management at each Balance Sheet date.

E. Impairment of Assets:

Property and Equipment are reviewed for impairment at the end of the year whenever events or
changes in circumstances warrant that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of an asset to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset of future net discounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.

If such an asset is “3nsidered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount of the asset. There
is no impairment of assets in current financial year.

10. INVESTMENTS:

a) Prudential norms prescribed by the Royal Monetary Authority of Bhutan are followed

regarding:

1. Revenue recognition

2. Classification of assets into performing and non- perfarming; and
3. Provisioning against performing and non-perfarming assets.

b} Purchases and sales of bonds, debentures and Government Securities are accounted for on
the date of settlement.

c) The cost of investments includes brokerage, premium on acquisition, Securities Transaction
Tax and their related expenses.

d) Income from fixed deposits is accounted when accrued.
e) All debt securities including Government Securities have been measured at amortized cost.



11. CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX:

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. In this case, the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income, The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date in Bhutan. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. Management establishes provisions where apprapriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available, against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

12.1 Retirement Benefits

Defined Contribution Scheme

Employees' Retirement Benefits belong to a defined contribution Benefit plan managed by a separate entity.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Defined Benefit Scheme

A defined benefit plan is any post-employment benefit plan other than 3 defined contribution plan. The
Company makes retirement payments based on the final salary and years of service. The Company contributes
the last-drawn basic salary of all employees present at year end into a gratuity fund which is maintained by a
separate entity, i.e. Bhutan Insurance Limited.

12.2  Other Benefits

Other benefits, such as leave encashment, etc. are accrued at year end without actuarial valuation.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.



14. CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method. Interest received, interest paid, and
dividend received is classified as investing cash flows, while dividend paid is classified as financing cash flow.
Far cash flow purposes, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.

15. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, AND CONTINGENT ASSETS:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) because of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Contingent Assets are recorded in the financial statements when it is virtually certain that future economic
benefit will flow to the entity in respect of such contingencies.

A contingent lizbility is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probzble that an outflow of resourcas will be
required to settle the obligation. Contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there s a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize
cantingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

16. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE:

The Board of Directors has propesed dividends for the financial year 2024.

17. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION:

Where necessary, certain comparative information has been reclassified in order to provide a more
appropriate basis for comparison.




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Nu)

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents As on 31-12-2024 ‘As on 31-12-2023

Balances with Bank in Current Account

In foreign currency

Druk PNB Bank Ltd.

- USD Account 22,775,849 9,111,360

- INR Account 41,638,505 120,988,665

In local currency

Bank Of Bhutan Ltd. 302,070 302,770

Bhutan Development Bank Ltd. 1,257 1,450

Bhutan National Bank Ltd. 123,025 100,510

Druk PNB Bank Ltd. 65,009,332 36,955,944

T bank Ltd. 276,325 85,458
130,126,364 167,546,156

Cash in Hand 46,892 228,475

i 0 L b b 4 b

2. Other Bank Balances As on 31-12-2024 Ason 31-12-2023

(i) In Fixed Deposit Accounts

Druk PNB Bank Ltd. 311,500,000 430,000,000

T bank Ltd. 150,000,000 -

Bhutan National Bank Ltd. - 200,000,000

Bhutan Development Bank Ltd. - 50,000,000

(i) In Unpaid Dividend Account 250,571 653,881

Grand Total 461,750,571 680,653,881

3. Insurance Receivables

As on 31-12-2024

Ason 31-12-2023

Unsecured, considered good
Net Reserve (Retained)

Grand Total

1,367,306,746
56,171,947

Impairment on Insurance Receivables (16,825,157}

1,406,653,535

Chairperson W2\
GIC Bhutan Reinsurance co Itd " %~

1,366,498,451
44,026,810
(16,825,157)
1,393,700,205




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Amount in MNuw.)

a1 d Adh £ Ason 31-12-2024 ' Ason 31-12-2023
Considered Good
A. Non- Current
Unsecured

Bhutan insurance L1d. 400,000,960 700,000,000
Secured
|ee Beverages Private Limitea® 218,701,541 I- 218,701,341
Thurdrel Apartment 150,000,000 | 150,000,000
Diruk Hydro Energy Limited |
- Suchnu Hydro Power Project 28,270,000 |
- Burgangchhu =ydro Power Project 16,220,000 E
- Yungiehhy =ydro Power roject 30,080,000 |
Loans to ampioyess against hypothecatcon of Vehcles 179,743 280,174

staff Personal Loan 3,747,427 4.420,867
Tatal Fund 248,199,112 1,074,382,782
a. Shareholders Fund | 230,684,095 321,558,927
b. Palicy holder Fund 617,515,016 752,822,855
A, Total Non- Current Financial Assets . sagissgtp | 1,074,382.782
B. Current
Secured

Nubn Capital Put, La, 50,000,000 100.000,000
Unsecured
ghutan Insurance Lid. 300,000,000 .
Total Fund 350,000,000 100,000,000
a. Sharshoiders Fund 95,189,245 19,928,736
b. Palicyhoider Fund 254,310,755 70,070,264
B. Total Current Financial Assets ol 350000000 0 0 0 100,000,0

Grand Total [A + B] 1,198,199,112

*The repayment of principal and interest for the loan granted to M/s Ice Beverages Private Limited has been
deferred in accordance with the Standard Operating Procedures (50P) of Financial Institutions (Fis) for Loan
Deferment Post-lune 2024 and the Directive on Deferment, FEIF, and Loan Prowisioning dated 28th
September 2023, issued by the Royal Monetary Autharity (RMA) of Bhutan.

Further, the RMA has approved the restructuring plan for the repayment of this loan vide its letter dated
20th Novermber 2024,

The key terms of the restructuring plan are as follows:

a} Defermen Maratarium:

- The loan will have a deferment period until 30th June 2025.

- A repayment moratoriurnm will be in place until 30th lune 2026,

b} Interest Rate & Subsidy:

- The interest rate for the entire loan portfolio is fixed at 9% p.a.

The Company has availed FSP under AGF with a 4% interest subsidy on the loan portfolio from 1st July 2024

to 30th june 2027 (or as per RMA's future directives).

[c) Treatment of Interest Accumulated:

- Interest accrued up to 30th June 2024 will be converted into FIEF (Financial Institution Emergency Fund).

- Interest accumulated during the period 15t July 2024 to 30th June 2026 will be capitalized at the end of the
moratorium pericd (i.e.. 30th June 2026].
{d) Repayment Schedule:

The loan tenure is 30.5 years, with repayment commencing from st July 2026 and continuing until 31st
December 2056.

- Only interest payments will be made during the initial 8.5 years, followed by principal repayment.

- FIEF will be repaid over 11.5 years, from 1st lanuary 2025 to 30th June 2046

Based on the restructuring pian and approvals received, this account has been classified as a Standard Asset
during the financial year

However, given the inherent weakness in this account, the Company has rnade;.n:man of 31% on such

loans as a prudent measure. T
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Amount in Nu.)

5. Other Financial Assets As on 31-12-2024 As on 31-12-2023
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits 108,786,408 100,000,080
Interest accrued on Investments 13,297,540 13,313,425
Interest accrued on Loans and Advances 99,130,736 71,771,505
Grand Total 221,214,684 185,085,020
6. Investments As on 31-12-2024 As on 31-12-2023
Long Term Investments

Bonds

T Bank Ltd. 35,000,000 35,000,000
Tashi Air | 100,000,000 100,000,000
Bank of Bhutan Ltd. 100,000,000 100,000,000
Druk Wang Alloy 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equity Shares

Druk PNB Ltd. 18,287,229 19,513,406
Fixed Deposit with Banks:

Druk PNB Ltd. 1,080,000,000 711,500,000
T bank Ltd. 445,000,000 395,000,000
Bank Of Bhutan Ltd. 750,000,000 650,000,000
Bhutan National Bank Ltd. 605,000,000 175,000,000

Grand Total

3,183,287,229

Chairperson !"J *[ ¥
GIC Bhutan Reinsurance goitdsay

2,236,013,406




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Amount in Nu.)

7. Current Tax Assets / (Liabilities) As on 31-12-2024 As on 31-12-2023
A. Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax - Opening Balance 30,002,424 12,158,969
Add: TDS Credit during the year at source 5,038,217 5,068,813
Add: Advance Tax paid during the year 1,048,304 20,094,102
40,088,946 41,321,384
Lass: Adjustments made during the year 30,002,424 11,319,480
A. Closing balance of Current Tax Assets 10,086,521 30,002,424
B. Current Tax Liability
Provisian for Corparate Tax - Opening Balance 50,068,516 53,170,148
Add: Provision made during the year 112,898,200 90,354,089
202,966,715 143,524,237
Less: Tax Paid during the year 60,442 544 42,136,262
Less: Adjustments made during the year 29,911,553 11,319,460
B. Closing balance of Current Tax Liability 112,612,618 90,068,516
A h ) 0 g 50 6,0

Chairpe
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GIC BHUTAMN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Propery and Equipment as per BAS |Usetul Life)

. i Grass Carrying Amaunt (in Nu.) ! 5 ______ Depreciation { Amortisation {in Nu) MNet Carrying Amount {in Nu.)
Particulars Ason 31-12-2023 | Additions in the year | Deletions inthe yoar | As on 31-12-2024 | As on 31-12-2023 | Depreciation for tha year | Adjust. inthe year | Ason 31-12-2024 | As on 31-12-2024 | As on 31-12-2023
A B 1 £ D=A+B-C E 5 F G H=E+F-G 1=D-H J=A-E
1 Property B Equipments
i) Computer Equipinents 14,308,659 60 222.900.00 14,531,559 60 10,850,854 28 1,339, 650.97 L2190, 505 25 2,341,054 35 4,457.80532
W) Electrone Equipment 22031600 124, 208.00 444,524.00 156, /96,49 53,661 56 210,458.05 13a.k65 45 531.51951
W Fainiture & Fixtures TG, 11178 228, 75000 1,307 851, 78 1,552, 142.49 7116,859.24 2.269,001.73 3.U38.Bel.Us 5,546,904 29
k) Gym Equipment 424461 55 424,461 55 30¢ 14678 0, 74459 37289037 5157118 12231477
¥] Mo Vehitles 6, 840,429.00 b, 840, 425,00 1,591 109.05 670,835 87 4./601,944.92 2578484 U8 4,249 31995
vi) Oitice Equipmenis 2 53R093 00 2.538,053.00 L, 745 259 84 32902672 2,074 31650 4p3 Modd 92 803 16
| ¢ Intangible Assels 1.966,/15.00 | o 7,966,715.00 5,08/ 38694 1,246,341.89 ) 633372882 | 163258616 | 2,879 32806
A, Total Proparty & Equl 39,377,785.93 575,858.00 . 39,953,643.93 23,285,725 86 4,427,119.84 - 0 12,240,798.23 16,092,060.07
Capltal Wark-in-Piogress
B. Total CWIP - " . ¥ X . . H
= -] 8 0 9 2 B B4 0 B G 0.0
PREVIOUS YEAR 2023 32,276,142 04 7,101,643 89 39,377,785.93 18,561,149.52 4,73 576 .36 23,285 725 88 16,092 0&0.04 13,714 5992 52
Ch"- . o ."‘:fr I
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Amount in Nu.)

9.0ther Assets | As on 31-12-2024 As on 31-12-2023
Current Assets

Zrepaid Expenses 2,063,362 2,581,311
Miscellaneous Recewvables 70,750 246,252
[ Total S 2,134,112 | 2,827,563

Mon-Current
Security Deposits ( House Rent)

890,000 590,000

Tatal 590,000 590,000
Grand Total 2,524,112 3,517,563
10. Reinsurance Contract Liabilities As on 31-12-2024 As on31-12-2023
Reinsurance Contract Liabilities 792,232,933 853,345,146
11. Trade and Other Payables | As on 31-12-2024 | As on 31-12-2023
Actuarial & Audit Fees Liability | 139,500 339,500
Ouistanding Expense | 368,439 230,015
Palicyholders payment in advance 1.647,781
TDS Payable | 270,094 435,146
Unclaimed Dividend 249,107 496,109
Grand Total 2,874,921 1,500,770
12. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (Net) | As on 31-12-2024 As on 31-12-2023
|

Deferred Tax Asset |

ARemeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans | 674,713

Deferred Tax Asset: 674,713

Deferred Tax Liabilities |

Timing Difference on account of Property & Equipment | 212,983 187,674

|
Equity Investment at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive income | 342,428 BAB 972
Deferred Tax Liabilities: ‘ 555,411 836,646
Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities) (Net) 119,302 | (836,646)

Grand Total 119,302

13. Provisions | As on 31-12-2024 | As on 31-12-2023
Claims Qutstanding (OSLR) 2,489,398 865 | 2,041,635, 248
necurred But Not Reported (IBNR) | 455,175,694 i 533,639,438
Un-Earned Premium Reserve (UPR) 723,904,520 | 607,265,066
Prowvision for Retro Premium | 73,038.627 32,680,319
Tetal | 3,741,517,806 3,215,220,072
Employee Benefit Uabilities |

Gratuity

Defined Benefit Cbiigation 6,371,875 3,465,879
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets 3.673,021)| 2,242.451)
Met Employee Benefit Liabilities 2,698,854 1,223,427
Provision Against Standard Asset | 70,392,574 47,684,216

Grand Total 3,814,609,233 3,264,127,715

Chairpers.r:: \ l!,l' (oL AN el
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Amount in Nu.)

14. Revenue from Operations | For the year 2024 | For the year 2023

Gross Re-Insurance Premium Accepted ! 2,307 888,670 1,999,382 ,886
Less: Premium on Re-insurance Ceded 266,616,519} 213,417.855)
Less: Adjustment for Change in Un-Earned Premium Reserve {116,639,554}| (235,505.423)
Grand Total 1,924,632,597 1,550,459,808
15. Otherlncome . | Fortheyear2024 | For the year 2023
ncome From Bond - 21,384,116 | 16,245,453
ncome From Dividend 332,247

income From Fixed Deposit { 193,671,152 | 159,235,470
Income From Investment 2,589,039 |

income from Loans and Advances 24 466,161 73,208,948
Miscellaneous Income 157,202 2,530
Grand Total 303,599,916 248,692,401
16. Direct Expenses For the year 2024 For the year 2023
Claims Paid 825,297,508 487,623,683
Change in OSLR 447,763,617 414,295 978
Change n IBNR | 78,463,744 46,968.338
Commission 480,504,351 376,059,665
Other Expenses - Direct 4,340,264 5,013,122
Grand Total 1,680,041,995 1,329,960, 786
17. Employee Benefit Expenses For the year 2024 For the year 2023
Salary and Wages 27,457,962 20,987,262
Bonus 3,266,043 3,426,209
Contribution to Fund 1,766,925 1,327,067
Gratuity 1,063.309 1,223,427
Staff Weifare Expenses 415,468 468,627

Training Expensas i 701,801 209,913
Grand Total 34,672,508 28,242,505

18, Other Expenses | For the year 2024 | For the year 2023

Actuarial Fees [ 359,000 300,000
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses { 154,840 559,165
Audit Fees & Expenses | 502.354 | 540,632
Bank Charges | 877,530 | 683,617
Consultancy Fees ! | 200,000
Contribution to GCSC Capital Fund ' 350,000 350,000
CSA Expenses l 501,300 | 323,894
Electricity Charges | 162,682 | 164,726
Entertainment Expenses | 19,055 29,459
Exchange Rate Difference | 3,832,045 | 2,124,057
Fee, Charges & Subscription - General 3,429,876 | 1872626
Fee, Charges & Subscription - T 3,924,279 | 1,753,101
General & Office Expenses | 745,097 | 348 444
Insurance on Property & Equipment | 25,535 | 21,556
SO Certification & Audit Fees | 353,968 | 838,000
Meeting Expenses ' 508,060 | 490,156
Miscellaneous Expenses 180,227 369,084
Printing and Stationery | 508,474 2,256,252
Provision Against Standard Asset 212,715,894 | 23,464,183
Provision for Insurance Recewables E | 16.825.157
Rating Fees & Expenses | 3,903,140 | 4,105,454
fental Expense | 5,856,600 5,010,500
Aepairs & Maintenance . 266,288 181,049
Sitting Fees | 774.000 617,000
Telephone Fax & Internat ! 964.566 975,699
Travelling Expenses | 5,430,701 | 7,481,253
Vehicle Expenses | 364,872 578,054

Grand Total 57,410,683 74,863,318

GICB Chairperson || ~ -'~‘.:.- HR) !
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY UMITED
MOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
[Amount in Nu.)

19, Tax Expense For the year 2024 [ For the year 2023
Current Tax Expense for:

- Current Year 112,898,200 | 90.354,089
- Earlier Years : 512,003
Deferred Tax Sxpense ! (240,519) | 353,184)
Tax expenses on Continuing Jperations | 112,657,681 90.512,309

Taxes on Discontinuing Operations

Taxes on Comprehensive Income
Grand Total 112,657,681 90,512,909

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Brofit Before Tax | 451,680,207 | 361,361,022
Tax Rate | 25% 25%
Income Tax Expense calculated at the effective rate | 112,920,052 30,340,256
Income Tax relating o earlier years : - 512,003
Deferred Tax Expense/ [Incoma) | (240,519} (353,184}
Incerme Tax for other adjustments (21,852} 13,334
Tax Expense as per Profit and Loss Statement 112,657,681 90,512,309
Deferred Tax Asset for taxable temporary differences:
QOn Account of Property and Equipment {212,983} | 187,674
On Fair Value gain on equity investment (FVOCH) (342,428 648,972
On Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 574,713 | .
Deferred Tax Assets [Net) 119,302 | 836,546 |
20. Other Comprehensivelncome -~ | — Fortheyear2024 |  Fortheyear2023 -
iterns that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss: |
Fair Value gain an Equity Investments (Net of Tax) J (919,632) 1,946,916
Aemeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans (Net of Tax) | (1,226,658) -

Grand Total 2,1486,290)

21, Earnings per Share | For the year 2024 For the year 2023

A, Absolute no. of Shares [ 110,000,000 110,000,000
8. Diluted na. of Shares 110.000.000 110,000,000
. Profit attributable to the Equity holders 339,022,526 270,848,114
0. income from Continuing Operations for the year 339,022,526 270,848,114
Basic Earnings Per Share .08 246
Diluted Earnings Per Share 3.08 248
Basic Continuing Earmings Per Share 3.08 248
Diluted Continuing Earnings Per Share 3.08 146
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Share Capital:

he Company has only ane class of shares as equity shares having a par value Nu. 10.00

[

b. Holders of equity shares s entitied to one vote per share. Details are as follows:

As on31-12-2024
No. of Shares | Amount in Nu.

|
500,000,000/

As on 31-12-2023
No. of Shares Amount in Nu.

Particulars

Autharised Share Capital

5,000,000,000 500,000,000 5,000.000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity Shares

110,000,000) 1,10€,000,000

110,000,000

110,000,000

110,000,000

b. List of shares in the Company held by it's associates are as follows:

SI No. Name of the Shareholders £ o0 M
Ason 31-12-2024 | Ason31-12-2023
1 Bhutanese (74%) 31,400,000 81,400,000
2 Fareigner (26%) 28,600,000 28,600,000
TOTAL 110,000,000 110,000,000
22.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year-
3 No. of Shares
Particulars
As on 31-12-2024 | Ason31-12-2023

As at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year

110,000,000

110,000,000

As at the end of the year 110,000,000

110,000,000

22.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to ordinary equity shares

The Company has issued ordinary Equity Shares having face value of BTN 10 per share. Each holder of such class of Equity Shares
s entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
sharenolders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the avent of liguidation, the eguity
sharenoiders are aligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after payment of all greferential amaounts, in proportion
to their shareholding.

Amount in Nu.

23. Other Equity:

As on 31-12-2024

As on 31-12-2023

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings

Less: Transfer to General Reserve

439,972,206
169,511,263
29,935,320

Balance at the end of the year 639,418,789 439,972,206

Balance at the beginning of the year 135,424,057
Add: Prafit for the year 169,511,263
Less: Dividend paid 110,0C0,000)

304,548,150
135,424,057

Balance at the end of the year 165,000,200
,_j:;?j . --ﬁ TA
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| Met Unrealized Gains/ (Losses) I

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,946,315 -
Add: Fair Value gain on Equity Instruments (Net of Income Tax affect) (919,632} 1,946,316
| Add: Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (1,226,558)

Balance at the end of the year (199,374) 1,946,916

Mowvement in Deferred Tax Liabilities and Assets during the year:

Recognised in

| " 3 v
statement of P&L Recognised in OCI Closing Balance

Particulars | Opening Balance

As at 31st December 2024 i
Deferred Tax Asset [
Remeasurements of the Defined I - 265,827 408,386 674,713
Benefit Plans

! - 265,827 | 408,286 574,713
Deferred Tax Liabilities ' '
Timing Difference on account of | 187,674 25,309 ~ 212,983
Property & Equipment

548,972 . -308,544 342,428
Eguity Investment at Fair Values
through Other Comprehensive Income | 1:
! 536,546' 25,309 -306,544 555,411
i -836,646 240,519 715,430 119,302

Caleulation of Deferred Tax Liability on account of Property & Equipment:

Temporary Timing Deferred Tax
Particulars As per BAS As per [T Act Diff. Liability/asset
As on 31-12-2023
WDV of Property & Equipment j 16,092,060 15,341,363 -750,697 -187,674
A. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities): -187,674
As on 31-12-2024 [
WDV of Property & Equipment | 12,240,798 11,388,866 -851,332

B. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities):

(Increase)/Decrease in DTL[B-A] :

N

f =<4
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24, Impairment Loss on Trade Receivables:

As per accounting policy of the Company an amount of Nu. NiL has been provided as Impairment Loss on Trade Receivables.

25, Employee Benefits:

Gratuity: Amount in Nu.
| Particulars | Ason31-12-2024 |  Ason31-12-2023

A. Present value of DBO in the beginning : 3,465,379 2,832,963
Differance in apening figure | 978,895 -
Current Service Cost ' 1,282,138 1,223,427
Past Service Cost - -
Interest Expense or Cost 311,134 129,303
Benefits paid by the pian - -
Benefits paid directly by the Company during the year (715,815)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: |

Experience Adjustment (i.e., actual experience vs assumpticns) I 333,829

Change in Demographic Assumptions -

Change in Financial Assumptions . -
Present value of DBO at the end 6,371,875 3,465,879
B. Fair value of plan assets in the beginning | 2,242,451 1,936,404
Differance in opening figure | 1,223,427 -
Contributions paid into the plan | 1,223,427 932,259
Expected Return on the plan assets 285,431 129,303
Benefits paid from the plan - (755,515)
Return on plan assets greater or (less) than discount rate (1,301,715) -
Fair value of plan assets in the end 3,673,021 2,242,451
Defined benefit cbligation at the year and W (6,371.875) (3,465,879)
Plan assets at the year and 3,673,021 2,242,451
Net Employee Benefit Assets/ (Liabilities) [A-B] (2,698,854) (1,223,427)
C. Bifurcation of liability

Current liability | - &
MNan - Current Asset/ (Liability) | (2,698,854) (1,223,427)
Net Asset/(Liability) (2,698,854) (1,223,427)
D. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss i

Difference in opening figure | (244,532)

Current Service Cost 1,282,138 1,223,427
Past Service Cost -

Net Interest Income / (Cost) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability 25,703 8}
[Asset)

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 1,063,309 1,223,427
E. Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gains}/ losses due to Liability Experience 333,829

Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to Liability Assumption Changes | -

Return on plan assets (greater) or lass than Discount Rate | 1,301,715

Remeasurement (gains)/ losses recognized in OCl | 1,635,544+ i

/oy




F. Reconciliation of Net Financial Position

Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) in the beginning of the 1,223,427 896,559
current period

Amount recognized in the Income Statement 1,063,309 1,223,427
Amount recognized in the OCl 1,635,544 -
Contributions paid into the plan (1,223,427) (932,259)
Benefits paid by employer - 35,700
Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) in the end of the current

period 2,698,854 1,223,427
G. Acturial Assumptions

Financial Assumptions:

Discount Rate per annum 7.00% Not available

Salary Escalation per annum 6.50% Not available ;
Demographic Assumptions:

Mortality Rate (of IALM 2012-2014) 100% Not available
Attrition Rate per annum 8% Mot available

Note 1: The company contributes the last drawn monthly basic salary of all employees present at year end into a gratuity fund

maintained by Bhutan Insurance Limited

Note 2: For 2023 the management had estimated the provisions for the furture payment of gratuity and leave encashment based
on management's judgement rather than an acturial assessment. Thus, acturial assumpt:ans f'.r_lgst year is not available and

adjustments have been made accordingly in the current year.
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GIC - BHUTAMN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Continued)

26. Segment Reporting:
Operating Segment are reported in 3 manner cansistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

a. Identification of Report Segments:

The Group has two operating and reporting segments; viz. Reinsurance Department and Investments Department
The operational segments are (dentified by the Management based on the nature of activities

Financial information about each of the operating activities segment is sent to the Board

b. Primary Segment Information (Business Segment):

Cperating Segment Income Statement for the year ended 31st December 2024 Figures in Nu.

GIC Bhutan Reinsurancb?;{i i

o For the year ended 31st December, 2024 s
! _Purﬂmdurs_ ek = Total
Gross Written Premiums 2,307 388,570 2,307 888,670
Premium Ceded to Rensurers [266,616,519) 1266,616,519)
Met Written Premiums 2,041,272,151 | - 2,041,272,151
Net Change in Reserve for Unearned Premium {116,639,554) (116,639,554)
Met Earned Premium 1,924,632,597 - 1,924,632,597
Fee and Commission Income - Extarnal - + h
Fee and Commission Expense - External (485,444 515) - (485,444 615)
Net Fee & Commission Income (485,444,615) - (485,444 515)
Interest Income - External 303,599,916 303,599,916
Less: Interest Expense - External = |
Net Interest Income - 303,599,916 303,599,916
Total Revenue 1,439,187,981 303,599,916 1,742,787,898
Gross Benefit and Claims paid (1.363,449,239) (1,363,449,239)
Claims Ceded to Reinsurars 168,851,859 - 168,851,859
Net Benefit and Claims (1,194,597,330) - (1,194,597 ,380)
Expenses relating to private Provident Fund (1,424,355) (342,570) (1,766,925)
Other Operating and Administrative Expense [67,544,040) 127,199, 346) (94,743, 386)
Profit Before Tax 175,622,206 276,058,000 451,680,207
Income Tax Expense (43,803,537) 68,854,144) (112,657,681}
Profit After Tax 131,818,670 207,203,356 | 339,022,526
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses):
a. Equity Investments through Cther
Comprehensive Income (919,632) 919,632
b. Remeasurements of the Defined Benefit Plans (1,226,658) (1,226,658)
Total Other Comprehensive Income -2,146,290 {2,146,290)
ITOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 131,818,670 205,057,566 336,876,235
/_ ",
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Operating Segment Statement of Fmanclal Position as at 31 December 2024

As at 31st December, 2024

Particulars : : ' Total
Reinsurance  Investments
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 591,923,826 - 591,923,826
Insurance Receivables 1,406,653,535 - 1,408,653,535
Loans and Advances 1,198,199,112 | 1,198,199,112
Other Financials Assets 221,214,684 | 221,214,684

Invastmeants

3,183,287,229 |

3,183,287,229

Property and Equipment 10,607,812 | 10,607,812
Intangible Assets 1,632,986 1,632,986
Deferred Tax Assaet 461,730 -342,428 | 118,302
Cther Assets 2,824,112 | 2,824,112
TOTAL ASSETS 3,209,017,271 3,404,501,914 6,616,462,599
Liabilities
Rainsurance Contract Liahilities 73,038,627 - 73,038,627
Trade and Other Payahbles 795,107,854 795,107,854
Tax Payable 102,526,087 102,526,097
Provisians 3,671,178,033 70,392,574 3,741,570,607
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,641,850,611 70,392,574 4,712,243,184
Equity
Share Capital - - 1,106,000,000
Other Reserves:
General Reserve 634,507,526
Retained Earnings - 169,511,263
Net Unrealized Gains/ {Losses) 2 {199,374)
TOTAL EQUITY - ——, - 1,904,219,415
i.'g -
Chairperson I

GIC Bhutan Remsuran




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

Operating Segment income Statement for the year anded 31st December 2023

Figures in Nu.

For the year ended 315t December, 2023

L oA
Wy

Particulars Total
Reinsurance I investments :

Gross Written Premiums 1,999,382 886 | 1,399,382,886
Premium Ceded to Reinsurers (213,417,655)| i213,417,655)
Net Written Premiums 1,785,965,231 : - | 1,785,965,231
Net Change in Reserve for Unearned Premium (235,505,423} | | (235,505,423)
Net Earmed Premium 1,550,459,308 | 1,550,459,808
Fee and Commission Income - External - |

Fee and Commission Expense - External (381,072,787} | '1 (381,072,787)
Net Fee & Commission Income (381,072,787) | - (381,072,787)
Interest Income - External 248,692,401 248,632,401
Lass: Interest Expense - External .
Net Interest income - 248,682,401 | 248,692,401
Total Revenue 1,169,387,021 | 148,592,401 I 1,418,079,421
Gross Benefit and Claims paid {1,116,406,553)| [1,116,406,553)

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers 167,518,554 | | 167,518,554
MNet Benefit and Claims (948,887,399 - | (948,887,399)

Expenses relating to private Provident Fund (1,108,137) (218,931) [1,327,067)

Other Operating and Administrative Expense (79,789,885) (26,713,447) (106,503,333)

Profit Before Tax 139,501,000 221,760,023 361,361,022

Income Tax Expense (34,366,349) (55,545,960) {90,512,909)

Profit After Tax 104,634,050 166,214,063 270,848,113
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses):

a. Equity Investments through Other
Comprehensive Income 1,946,916 1,946,916
Total Other Comprehensive Income - 1,946,916 1,946,916
|TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 104,634,050 168,160,979
LA T
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Operating Segment Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

' DOk, Fhr'_@g-w?rgided-am Dei:emha', 20:23 ._ af B 'I' oo _' e
i Reinsurance - Investments : :

Assets |
Cash and Cash Equivalents 848,428,512 - . 348,428,512
Insurance Recasivables 1,410,525,362 - 1,410,525,362
Leans and Advances 1,174,382,782 - 1,174,382,782
Other Financials Assats 185,085,020 135,085,020
Investments = 2,236,013,406 2,236,013,406
Property and Equipment 13,212,732 i 13,212,732
intangible Assets 2,879,328 2,879,328
Other Assets 3,517,563 3,517,563
TOTAL ASSETS 3,452,346,279 2,421,098,426 5,874,044,706
Liabilities
Reinsurance Contract Liabilities 32,680,319 31,680,319
Trade and Other Payables 854,845 916 | 854,845,916
Tax Payable 60,066,091 - l 60,066,091
Deferred Tax Liability 187,674 548,972 | 836,646
Brovisions 3,200,588,337 47,684,216 | 3,248,272,553
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,148,368,338 48,333,188 E 4,196,701,526
Equity '
Share Capital . 1,100,000,000
Other Reserves:
General Reserve - - 439,972,207
Retained Earnings 135,424,057
Net Unrealized Gains/ [Losses) 1,946,916
TOTAL EQUITY 1,677,343,180




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

27. Related Party Transactions:
The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with the parties who are defined as
Related Parties in the Bhutanese Accounting Standard - BAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures), the details of which
are reported below. The pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of risk of the
Company and is comparable with what is applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated
customers.

27.1 Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)
According to Bhutanese Accounting Standard - BAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures) Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity. Such KMPs include the Board of Directors of the Company (including both Executive and Non Executive
Directors), key employees who are holding directorship in Subsidiary Companies of the Company.
Close Family Members (CFM) of the KMPs are those family members who may be expected to influence or be
influenced by that KMPs in their dealing with the entity. They may include KMPs domestic partner and children
of the KMPs domestic partner and dependents of the KMPs and the KMPs domestic partner.

Name of Board of Directors:

Aum Damchae Dem (Chairperson - Promoter)
Dasho Sangay Wangchuk (Director - Promoter)
Mr. Soroj Kumar Rath (GIC Re|

Mrs. Jayashri Balkrishna (GIC Re)

Mr. Kesang Wangdi (Chief Executive Officer)

W B W

27.2 Remuneration of KMP:
Key Management Personnel Expenses include:

SEF Yo e | :Natureof Transactions/ | . o i o - ST

- Name e PSR A - Ason 31.12.. | Ason31.12.2023
1 |Mr. Kesang Wangdi Remuneration & Benefits 4,020,000 2,820,000
Bonus 500,000 705,000
Leave Encashment 300,000 200,000
Leave Travel Concession 20,000 20,000
Sitting Fees 180,000 144,000
2 |Dasho Sangay Wangchuk Sitting Fees 111,000 81,000
3 [Aum Damchae Dem Sitting Fees 111,000 81,000
4 |[Bharat Gurung Remuneration & Benefits 1,259,625 1,204,500
Sitting Fees 15,500 10,500

Bonus 189,000 -

Leave Travel Concession 20,000 -
5 |ligme Penjor Remuneration & Benefits 739,875 540,725
Bonus 106,313 105,000
Leave Encashment 35,438 33,750
Leave Travel Concession 20,000 20,000
Sitting Fees 55,500 44,000

6 |Singye Namgavel Doriji Sitting Fees 128,008 _A16,000 1~
.'Jf' L e _;_\; _5-‘ 2 L "
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sl No. Name ' "“t““fof:::ﬂ‘;:ﬂ?'.‘f’ | Ason31.12.2024 | Ason31.12.2023
7 |Tashi Dawa Sitting Fees 142,000 116,000
8 |Sonam Wangyel Remuneration & Benefits 564,000 397,984
Bonus 81,000 78,405

Leave Encashment 27,000 17,850

Leave Travel Concession 20,000 17,850

Sitting Fees 15,500 10,500

9 [Loday Zangpo Remuneration & Benefits 805,257 586,402
Bonus 117,210 113,456

Leave Encashment 39,070 27,563

Leave Travel Concession 20,000 20,000

Sitting Fees 15,500 10,500
10 |Visey Doelkar Remuneration & Benefits - 365,625
Sitting Fees - 3,500




GIC- BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT RATIOS

FINANCIAL RATIOS | 2024 s 2023
A | STABILITY RATIOS |
1 | Capital Adequacy Ratio {%6) 63% ! 60%
2 | Net Worth to Total Liabilities %) 40.41 ‘ 40.13
3 | Equity Investments to (Net Worth + Insurance Fund) (%) 0.38% 0.46%
B | PROFITABILITY RATIOS |
1 | Operating Income to NetWorth- Net | (%) 23.72 21.54
2 | Operating Income to Total Assets (%) 6.83 8.17
3 | Net Profit (After Tax) to Net Worth (%) 17.80 16.15
4 | Net Profit (After Tax) to Total Assets (%6) 5.12 4,582
S | Return on Core Equity (Profit After Tax) | (%) 17.80 16.17
C | STRUCTURAL RATIOS
1 | Debt/Core Equity Ratio NA
2 | Long Tarm Debt to Net Worth NA
3 | Net Fixed Assets to Long Term Debt NA
4 | Net Fixed Assets tc Net Worth (%) 0.64 .

CREITPBMON — | -2y 30500
CIC Bhutan Reinsurafica. co Itd




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

29.1 Determination of fair value hierarchy

This section expiams the judgements and estimates made in determining the fawr values of the financial instruments that are
|a| recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measurad at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements. To growide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into the three eveis prescrnbed under the accounting standards:

Level 1: The hierarchy uses guoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thatare not traded in an active market is determined using valuaticn

technigues which maximise the use of cbservable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates, If

all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are ooservable, the mstrument 15 included in Level 2

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in  Level

3
b i etk Level 1 tevel2 | tevel3 Total

Financial Assets

Insurance Recewvables 1,406,653,535 1,406,653,535

Loans & Advances 1,198,199,112 | 1,198,199,112

Cash & Cash Equivalent 130,173,256 130,173,256

Other Bank Balances - 461,750,571 461,750,571
TOTAL: - 3,196,776,473 3,196,776,473

Investments

Fixed Deposit with Bank | 5 2,880,000,000 2,880,000,000

Bond | . 285,000,000 285,000,000

Equity Shares | (1,226,177) - 19,513,406 18,287,229
TOTAL: | (1,.226,177) = 4 3,184,513,406 3,183.287,229

| |

Other Financial Assets | |

Other Financial Assets : 221,214,684 221,214,684
TOTAL : - - 221,214,684 221,214,684

Financial Liability

Reinsurance Contract Liabilities 792,232,933 792,232,933

Trade & Other Payables | 2,874,921 2874921
TOTAL : | | | 795,107,854 | ~——. 795,107,854

-
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as at 315t December 2023 e e i Lo
Financial Assets
Insurance Receivables | 1,393.700,205 1,393, 700,205
Loans & Advances 1,174,382,782 1,174,382,782
Cash & Cash Equivalents 167,774,632 167,774,632
Other Bank Balances 580,653,881 580,653,881
TOTAL : | 3,416,511,499 3,416,511,499
Imvestments |
Fixed Deposit with Bank I 1,931,500,000 | 1.931,500,000
Bonds - 285,000,000 ] 285,000,000
Equity Shares | 2,595,888 16,917,519 ' 19,513,406
TOTAL : 2,595,888 2,233,417,519 | 2,236,013,406
%er Finarn:igi Asgts |
Other Financial Assets 185,085,020 | 185,085,020
TOTAL: | - " 185,085,020 | 185,085,020
Financial Liability
Reinsurance Contract Liabilities - 853,345,146 853,345,146
Trade & Other Payables 1,500,770 1,500,770
TOTAL: | - - 854,345,916+ 854,845,916
"ﬁ--—--&" 7O\
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29.2 Financial Instruments by Category
The following table shows fair values of financial assets and liabilities together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Pasition. The table does
not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair

GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

value.
e LT Tt LT L IO : R SR Fair Value through N e e e
Financial Assets and Liabilities | = g el s i et et Pale Malusithrough i Sl in s o0 ; ; ’
b R M AR O o L] - Amortised Cost | Other Comprehensive | « = =~ = = | Total Carrying Value Total Fair Value
~ asat 31st December 2024 i 1 e e DR NEIRE B bt ani s i[OV UOVRE VALK _ S
i e ey g R Fs A 4 | ik lﬂ_ﬁﬂl‘l‘l! : = = g
_ Financial Assets L - =
Insurance Receivables 1,406,653,535 1,406,653,535
L_oa_p_g_& f.ﬂances _1,198,199,112 1,198,199,112 -
Cash & Cash Equivalent 130,173,256 130,173,256
Other Bank Balances 461,750,571 461,750,571
TOTAL : 3,196,776,473 - - 3,196,776,473 -
Investments s .
Fixed Deposit with Bank . 2,880,000,000 2,880,000,000 =
Bond - o 285,000,000 - 285,000,000 -
Equity Shares 16,917,518 1,369,710 18,287,229 18,28?,229_'
TOTAL 3,181,917,518 1,369,710 - 3,183,287,229 18,287,229
Other Financial Assets i )
Other Financial Assets 221,214,684 221,214,684
TOTAL : 221,214,684 - - 221,214,684 -
Financial-ﬁ;hilig .
R‘_e!nsurance Contract Liabilities 792,232,933 o= = ] . 792,232,933 e S
Trade & Other Payables 2,355,720 =27355,720
TOTAL : 794,588,653 - - ~.71794,588,653" -
£ SN
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. f/ [ koL
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Financial Assets and Liabilities as at

Fair Value through

:i_:air Value through

e ‘Amortised Cost | Other Comprehensive wigpiah ' | Total Carrying Value Total Fair Value
T itbeamberzzs | Amorisdct | o Comptenae | Ty g | Toel cain v
Financial Assets = —
| Insurance Receivables 1,393,700,205 1,393,700,205| -
Loans & Advances 1,174,382,782 - 1,174,382,782
Cash & Cash Equivalents 167,774,632 167,774,632 N
Other Bank Balances 680,653,881 680,653,881
TOTAL : 3,416,511,499 - 3,416,511,499 -
Investments ) B
Fixed Deposit with Bank 1,931,500,000 1,931,500,000
Bond - 285,000,000 285,000,000 -
Equity Shares 16,917,518 2,595,888 19,513,406 19,513,406
TOTAL 2,233,417,518 2,595,888 2,236,013,406 19,513,406
atl_'lg_r- _Ei Qég(ig | Assets = s
Other Financial Assets 185,085,020 - 185,085,020
TOTAL : 185,085,020 - 185,085,020 5
Financial Liability . I T |
Reinsurance Contract Liabilities 853,345,146 853,345,146
Trade & Other Payables 569,515 569,515
TOTAL: 853,914,661 - 853,914,661 =
b ) LN e
® KOLKATA
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GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29.3 Maturity Analysis [Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flow basis)

Partichlies As at 31 December 2024 ! As at 31 December 2023 i :
Within 12 months After 12 months Within 12months |  After 12 months
Einancial Assets |
Insurance Recevables 1,406,653,535 - 1,393,700,205 | -
Loans & Advances [ 350,000,000 348,199,112 100,000,000 1,074,382,782
Cash & Cash Eguivalent 130,173,256 - 167,774,632
Cther Bank Balances 461,750,571 | - 680,653,881
TOTAL : 2,343,577,362 | 348,199,112 2,342,128, 717 1,074,382,782
!
Investmeants
Fixed Deposit with Bank 2,830,000,000 - | 1,931,500,000
Bond - 285,000,000 | 285,000,000
Equity Shares | : 18,287,229 - 19,513,406
TOTAL:: | - 3,183,287,229 - 2,236,013,406
Other Financial Assets |
Other Financial Assets 58,580,675 162,624,009 149,058,993 36,026,027
TOTAL : 58,590,675 162,624,009 149,053,993 36,026,027
Financial Liability | |
Trade Payables | 792,232,933 - 853,345,146
Reinsurance Contract Liabilities | 2,355,720 569,515
TOTAL : | 794,588,653 - 853,914,661 -




GIC - BHUTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of angoing identification, measurement and monitoring,
subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’'s continuing profitability and 2ach
individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.
The Company is mainly exposad to;

a) Re-insurance Risk

b) Credit Risk

c) Liguidity Risk

d) Market Risk

2) Operational Risk

f} Geographical Risk
This note presents information about the Company’s axposurs to 2ach of the sbove risks, the company’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout these Financial Statements.

Risk Management Framework
The management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework,
The Company, through its training and management standards and grocedures, 3ims to develop 3 disciplined and constructive control
anvironment in which all employees understand their reles and cbligations.

a) Re-insurance Risk
The principal re-insurance risk the Company faces is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing thereof, differ from
expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subseguent development of
long=term claims. Therefare, the objective of the Company is ta ensura that sufficient reserves ars available to cover these liabilities.

The risk axposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolic of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability
of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance
arrangements,

The Company considered re-insurance risk to be a combination of the following compenents of risks:
* Product Design Risk;

* Underwriting and Expense Cverrun Risk;

* Claims Risk

Product Design Risk: The Company principally issues the following main types of Non- Life Insurance contracts-
*Engineering
*Motaor
*Fire
*Marine
*Miscellaneous

The significant risk arising under the Nen- Life Insurance portfolio amanates from changes in the climate leading to natural disasters,
behavioural trends of people due to change in life styles and the steady escalation of costs in respect of spare parts in the auto
industry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across 3 large portfolio of re-insurance contracts. The variability of risks is
improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified
in tarms of type of risk and level of re-insured benefits.

-urthermcre. a strict c[aum review nrucess 10 assess aH new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of :Ialms hahﬂhng .-.:rocedures




The Company has also limitad its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts 35 well as using reinsurance
arrangements with GIC Re india (Credit Rating by AM Best 'B++) in arder to limit axposure to catastrophic avents (landsiides,
sarthquakes, floods etc.] and large losses.

The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is To limit exposure to catastrophes.

The Company uses its own risk management framework to a risk that the assumptions and technigues used in these assessments
couid fail or that claims arising from an unassessed avent Is greater than those arising from an assessed avent.

b} Credit Risk
Credit risk is counter-party default risk, and includes the risk of failure of financial institutions with which the Company has placed
deposits/ investments to meet obligations. It alsc includes the risk of defauit by cedant on premium raceivable, default by lean clients
and failure of employees ta meet ioans provided by the Company. In addition to strict limits on single counterparty exposure, the
Company fellows a prudent credit poiicy which limits its investments to high-grade corporate credit in line with the investment oolicy
and above the regulatory minimum criteria. Single counter-party =xposure is monitored on 3 monthly basis, and any deviations
require special appreval.

c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liability. The Campany
maintains portfolio of highly marketable securities that can be =asily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash
flow. The Company ta mitigate the liguidity risk has maintained short term depesits.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date. The
amounts reported are on gross and undiscounted basis.

g j Rf et Syears el :
Insurance Receivables 1,256,025,122 150,628,413 = | - 1,406,653,535
Loans & Advances - 150,000,000 200,000,000 407,897,035 440,302,077 1,198,199,112
Investments 18,287,229 . 481,500,000 2,915,000,000 250,000,000 3,644,787,229
Other Financial Assets 31,832,341 | 26,758,333 49,030,027 113,593,983 221,214,684
Reinsurance Contract 1

Liabilities 764,165,487 28,586,647 792,752,134
Trade & Other Payables 3355720 | | | 5355730
Other Financial |

Lizbilities 5,573,774 | | 5,573,774
Insurance Receivables 1,257,479.697 | 136,220,508 - - 1,393,700,205
Loans & Advances 50,000,000 | 50,000,000 | 727,080,405 347,302,377 1,174,382,782
Investments 19,513,406 1,966,500,000 250,000,000 2,236,013,406
Other Financial Assets 31,983,584 67,075,409 | 36,026,027 185,085,020
Reinsurance Contract

Liabilities 828,974,539 24,370,507 853,345,146
Trade & Other Payables 569,515 583515
Other Financial

Liabilities 2,154,683 | 2,154,683

Chairpergon //
GIC Bhutan Reinsura ‘



d) Market Risk
Markat Risk refers to the risk of possibie adverse movements in the value of assets due to changes in market factors including
currency, equity arice and interast rate. The current uncertainties in the local and international markets and investment climate have
increased the degree of impact of market risk to the Company. The Company Risk Management Policy covers risk associated with the
financial assets and financial liabilities suchas interest rate risks and cradit risks.

|i) interest Rate Risk
The risk of interest rate volatility adversely affects the market value of the investment partfolic. In an increasing interest rate
snvironment, there will e a arop in the value of treasury bills snd bonds when they ara marked-to-market. the Campany
manitors its interast rate risk on a monthly basis by analyzing the movement in the interest rate sensitive asset duration, the
allocation to interast rate sensitive assets, and the sensitivity of interest rate movements on the solvency margin. Any movement
in the reference rates could have an impact an the Company's cash flows as well as cost.

a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure
The Company's Investment in intarest rate sensititive instruments at the end of reporting period is as follows:

31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23
285,000,000 285,000,000
2,880,000,000 1,931,500,000
1,198,199,112 1,174,382,782
4,363,199,112 3,390,882,782

Financial Assets
Investmeants in Bonds
Fixed Deposits with Banks
Loans and Advances

b) Interest Rate Sensitivity Ana
Profit or Loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest income from investments as 3 result of changes in interast rate

Impact on Profit Before Tax

Particulars 31-Dec-24 31-Oec-23
Interest Rates - Increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) ~ 21,815,996 16,954,414
Imterest Rates - Decreasa by S0 basis points (50 bos) * [21,815,996) (16,954,414)

* Holding all other variable constant

(ii} Currency Risk
Currency Risk is the risk of fluctuation of fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to change in exchange rates,
The Company’s principal transactions are carried on in Bhutanese as well as other currencies. The foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect to the US Doilar and cther currency denominated assets maintained in order to hanor liabilities of foreign
currency denominated insurance policies sold in the ordinary course of business. However, Receivables and Payables were
recorded in Bhutanese currency after converting them with exchange rates at the reporting date.

35 I
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e) Operational Risk

This is the risk of direct or indiract loss arising from 3 wide variety of causes asscciated with the Company's processes, personnel,
technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than cradit, market and liguidity risks such as those arising from legal
and regulatory raquirements and generslly accepted standards of corporate behavior. Operational failures could result indirect
consequencas such as producing misleading financial information, loss of return, financial penalties from regulators or damage to the
raputation of the Campany. Operational risks arise from all operations of the Company. While it is acknowledged that the Company
cannot eliminate all operational risks, it is in a position to manage such risks by initiating a rigorous control framework and by
monitering and responding ta potential risks. The Company’s Risk Management team assesses all foreseeable risk involved in its
operation and they develop and implementation plans to control those identified operational risk. these action plans recommended
oy the team are to manage the operational risk in the following areas:

Requirements for having appropriate segregation of duties including the independent autherization of transactions;

Requirements for the recenciliation and menitoring of transactions;

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

Documentation of controls and procedures;
. Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address
the risks identified;

Aequirements for the reporting of cperational losses and oroposed remedial action;

Develooment of contingency plans;

Training and professional develcpment;

Ethical and business standards;

Risk mitigation including reinsurance where this is cost affactive.

) Geographical Risk
Geographical Risk is the risk that an occurrence within a geographical locations have an adverse effect on the bank directly oy
impairing the value through an obligers ability to meet its obligation to the bank.

B. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital inciudes issued squity capital and all other equity reserves sttributable
to the equity share-holders of the Company. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and other stake holders.

GIC Bhutan Reinsurante ¢




NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the year under different

A, The Company has received/ paid the following farrign currency during
heads

Inflows:
nsurance Premium Received uso 2‘392.14;_5{) Receved

Qutflows:
Insurance Claims Uso g911,384.15 Paid
insurance Bremium {Retro) usp 312,091.58 Paid
Bank Charges UsD 4,433.34 Paid
Fees, Charges, & Subscriotions usp 71,212.15 Paid
General Travelling Expenses usD 13,500.00 Paid

8. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Provision Against Standard Assets

The Company had made provision of Nu. 70,392,573.50

The following transactions were discussed and agreed to incorporate in the books:

1. To provide provision against the loan to Ms. Ice Beverage Private Limited @ 31%
2. Tao provide provision to staff loan @ 1%
3. To provide provision to Thundrel apartment @ 1%
4. To provide provision to Burgangchhu Hydro Power Project @ 1%
5. To provide provision to Suchhu Hydro Power Project @ 1%
6. To provide provision to Yungichhu Hydro Power Project @ 1%
Particulars | Principal Outstanding i Provision
M/s ice Beverage Private Limited 219,701,941.31 £8,107,501.80
| Loan to Staff 3,927,170.22 39,271.70
Thundrel Apartment 150,000,000.00 1,500,000.00
Burgangchhu Hydro Power Project 16,220,000.00 162,200.00
| Suchhu Hydro Power Project 28,270,000.00 282,700.00
| Yungichhu Hydro Power Project 30,080,000.C0 300,300.00
| Total | 448,199,111.53 70,392,573.50

C. The company has not entered inta any contract with directors in which the director has dirsct or
indirect material interest.

D. SITTING FEES

The Directars of the company have been paid Nu. 774,000.00 as sitting fees during the year




E.  UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
2017

The Dividend, which was 4 laimed of
' eclared in the Fin. ; 17, still has a balance unciai
Nu. 63,088.46 inanclal Year 2017, 5

Diwvidend Declared Nu. 15,000,000.00

Lass: Dvidend Paid Qut Nu. 14,930,911.54

— Ny L 4.3
Balance Unclaimed Nu.  ©9,088.46
2022
The Dividend, which was declared in the Financial Year 2022, still has a balance unciaimed of
Nu. 99,694.26
Dividend Declared Mu. 76,450,000.00

Less: Dividend Paid Qut Nu. 76,350,305.74

Balance Unclaimed Nu.  99,693.26

2023
The Dividend, which was declared in the Financial Year 2023, still has balance unclaimed of
Nu. 81,788.00

Dividend Declared Nu. 110,000,000.00

Less: Dividend Paid Qut ~ Nu. 109.918,212.00

Balance Unclaimed Nu. 81,783.00

The balance is still remaining unclaimed as the shareholders did not update their contact and
banking details after several announcement.

F. Previous year's figures have been reclassified/ regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. The
accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 309005E

p

or and on behalf of the Board of wom
LY
‘&

=

(CA RITESH AGARWAL) %Wél!nn

Rartier GIC Bhutan Reinsurance co Itd

Membership No: 062410 §

Date: The day of March, 2025 .
Place: Kolkata Place: Thimphu
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